
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 21, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held August 7, 2023 

b. Approve Grant Agreement with Georgia Department of Community Affairs  
c. Approve Appointment of Field Engineering, LLC as a Secondary Engineering Firm 
d. Approve Farmer’s Market Fee Waiver for DC Health Department Car Seat Safety Check Event 
e. Approve No Rate Change for 2024 Solid Waste Collection Service Rate and Service Charge  

 

8. Employee Recognition 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ZSP C2300063:  Atlanta Motorsports Park, LLC has petitioned to amend the site plan and the current 
stipulations; located at 20 Duck Thurmond Road (TMP 070 049 001).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning 
Commission on Monday, August 14, 2023, and City Council Monday, August 21, 2023.  City Council for a 
decision on September 18, 2023. 

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. Fifty-Sixth Annual Mountain Moonshine Festival: Request for Road Closures 
 

11. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) tract 
known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County 
Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family 
Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 and City Council on 
October 4, 2021. Tabled indefinitely on April 18, 2022; On August 7, 2023 item was removed from table 
and placed on the August 21, 2023 agenda.  
 

12. ANX-C2200170: B&K Turner Family, LLP has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 
35.31 acre tract known as TMP 083 025, Located at Land Lot 584, 4th District, Section 1, with a County 
Zoning of RA (Residential Agricultural/Residential Exurban) to City Zoning AP (Annexed Property District).  
Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council on June 20, 2022.  City 
Council for a decision on July 18, 2022. Tabled indefinitely on July 18, 2022; On August 7, 2023 item was 
removed from the table and placed on the August 21, 2023 agenda. 
 

13. Ordinance No. 07-2023: An Ordinance To Amend The Alcoholic Beverage Ordinances Of The City Of 
Dawsonville, Georgia; To Provide For An Effective Date, And For Other Purposes (First Reading: August 
7, 2023; Second Reading and Consideration to Adopt: August 21, 2023) 

 

       STAFF REPORTS 
 

14. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
15. Robin Gazaway, Finance Director 

 

    EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED     

    RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED    

    ADJOURNMENT 
  

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, September 18, 2023 
 
Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk 
at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023    
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held August 7, 2023 

b. Approve Grant Agreement with Georgia Department of Community Affairs  
c. Approve Appointment of Field Engineering, LLC as a Secondary Engineering Firm 
d. Approve Farmer’s Market Fee Waiver for DC Health Department Car Seat Safety 

Check Event 
e. Approve No Rate Change for 2024 Solid Waste Collection Service Rate and Service 

Charge  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING HELD AUGUST 7, 2023 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 7, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
 

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, 
Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager 
Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utility Director Jacob 
Barr, Planning Director Jameson Kinley and Finance Director Robin Gazaway. 

 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Walden.   
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason announced the Family Connection Event, A Family Fair, will take 
place at Main Street Park on Friday, August 11, 2023 from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm.  The Farmer’s Market 
is open on Wednesdays at 3:00 pm in addition to Saturdays from 8:00 am until 1:00 pm or until sold 
out.    The City’s Comprehensive Plan will hold its final public meeting on August 10, 2023 at 5:30 pm 
at City Hall; he encouraged the public to attend.     

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by W. Illg; second 
by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  No participation by the public.   
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a - e) made by 
M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held July 17, 2023 
• Executive Session held July 17, 2023 

b. Approve Agreement to Dismiss and Release Claims (Opioid Litigation) 
c. Approve Contract for Medical, Dental, Term Life, Supplemental Insurance and Section 125 

Broker 
d. Approve Amended Bid for Construction of Basketball Court 
e. Approve JLC Room Rental Fee Waiver for the Kiwanis Club of Dawson County  

 

8. AWARD ANNOUNCEMENT: CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN 
FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR FY 2022:  The Mayor and Council announced the City has been 
awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and the Award of 
Financial Reporting Achievement for the Finance Department for FY 2022.  The awards were 
presented to the Finance Director, Robin Gazaway. 
 

9. PROCLAMATION: NATIONAL HEALTH CENTER WEEK, AUGUST 6-12, 2023:    The Mayor read 
the proclamation.   

    BUSINESS 
 

10. MILLAGE RATE FOR TAX YEAR 2023:   Motion to set the 2023 millage rate to 6.103 and roll it back 
to zero made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

11. ORDINANCE NO. 07-2023: AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (FIRST READING: AUGUST 7, 2023; SECOND READING 
AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: AUGUST 21, 2023):  Attorney Tallant provided a brief 
description of the amendment and read the first reading of the ordinance.  
 

12. AMENDMENT TO IGA FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT TO INCREASE COMPENSATION:  Mayor 
Eason explained he and Councilmember Walden met with Sheriff Johnson to discuss the retention of 
deputies assigned to the City and suggested additional compensation for the deputies.  They are 
recommending an additional $1.00 per hour for each deputy which totals $4,651.52 annually.   

 

Motion to approve the amendment to the IGA for an additional $1.00 per hour for each deputy 
assigned to the City made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Councilmember French asked if the 
budget will be able to handle the increase; Director Gazaway responded yes. Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  Attorney Tallant noted his office would prepare the amendment.   



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 7, 2023 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

13. ITEMS LAID ON TABLE INDEFINITELY:  Mayor Eason explained the City Council had previously 
tabled several items indefinitely in 2022.  Planning Director Kinley reported the details on the 
annexation and rezoning requests, ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043, which were tabled indefinitely 
on April 18, 2022 and the annexation request, ANX-C2200170, which was tabled indefinitely on July 
18, 2022.  Mayor Eason further stated that all required advertising has already been completed and 
requests the Council to place the items on a future agenda. 
 

Motion to place ANX-C2100043/ZA-C2100043 and ANX-C2200170 on the August 21, 2023 City 
Council meeting agenda made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

    ADJOURNMENT: 
 

At 5:12 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

 
 Approved this 21st day of August 2023 

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 
  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF 

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #       

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
      

TO APPROVE THE GRANT AGREEMENT WITH DCA REGARDING THE HISTORY 
PRESERVATION FUND GRANT THE CITY HAS BEEN AWARDED FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
FUNDING A NEW HISTORIC RESOURCE SURVEY 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
• CITY COUNCIL APPROVED GRANT AWARD IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,000 WITH A FIFTY 

PERCENT MATCH AT THE 07/17/2023 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

• AGREEMENT HAS BEEN FORWARDED AND APPROVED BY CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 

     OPTIONS:   
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Stacy Harris, Planning and Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  7b 
 

 

 



State of Georgia 
Fulton County  
 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF 

COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (“DCA”) AND CITY OF DAWSONVILLE (“CITY”) 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (hereinafter, “MOA”), effective on the 
3rd day of July, 2023 (GRANT AWARD DATE), created upon consent between the Georgia 
Department of Community Affairs (hereinafter, “DCA”) a state agency, whose address is 60 
Executive Park South, NE, Atlanta, GA  30329, and the City of Dawsonville (hereinafter, the 
“City”), whose address is 415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100, Dawsonville, GA, 30534, 
collectively, herein referred to as the “Parties”. 
 

WHEREAS, DCA is an executive branch state government agency created under the 
Official Code of Georgia Annotated (“O.C.G.A.”) § 50-8-1 et seq. and has the power to enter 
into contracts for services and administer grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the provision of adequate public recreation and park facilities, equipment, 
and areas; the preservation of scenic, historic, ecological, and scientific sites; and the safe 
maintenance of such areas and facilities is an obligation of state of Georgia and a benefit to all 
the people; and  
 

WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 12-3-32 authorizes the DCA to provide the above-mentioned 
services and facilities; and   
 

WHEREAS, DCA is authorized by O.C.G.A. § 12-3-5 and 12-3-32 to contract and make 
cooperative agreements, leases, and rental agreements, with the United States Government, any 
county, municipality, local government, or any combination of same, any public or private 
corporation, firm, or any persons whatsoever, any public authority, agency, commission or 
institution, or between state agencies, for any of the services, purposes, duties, responsibilities or 
functions vested in DCA; and 

 
WHEREAS, DCA acts as the liaison between the State of Georgia and the National Park 

Service (hereinafter, referred to as “NPS”), U.S. Department of Interior, by administering the 
Federal assistance program for preservation of properties listed on the National Register of 
Historic Places, as provided by the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City has duly applied for and been awarded a matching Historic 
Preservation Fund federal pass-through grant (hereinafter referred to as the “Grant”) in the 
amount of Six Thousand Dollars and Zero Cents ($6,000.00) for the City of Dawsonville 
Historic Resources Survey and Inventory project as defined in Exhibit B such amount to be no 
greater than sixty percent (60%) of the allowable cost to the City of the project work, which is 
described, together with the budget for carrying it out, in Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and 
by reference specifically incorporated herein.  Payments on a sixty percent (60%) reimbursement 
basis may be made at reasonable intervals and upon submission to DCA of a request for 
reimbursement, supported by required financial documentation and progress reports.   
 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and 

agreements contained herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
Section 1. Statement of Work and Terms 
 
1.1 The City shall carry out the proposed project work to be mutually agreed upon by 

DCA and the City as specified in Exhibits A-D.  
 

1.2 Project work shall be carried out in conformance with the Secretary of the Interior's 
Standards for the Evaluation, Identification, and Registration, part of the Secretary of 
Interior's Standards for Archaeology and Historic Preservation. At the completion of 
the project all work will be reviewed by DCA in order to assure compliance with the 
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Evaluation, Identification, and 
Registration, part of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Archaeology and 
Historic Preservation. Final products that do not conform to the applicable Secretary 
of the Interior's Standards and approved scope of work will not be reimbursed. 

 
1.3 The City shall notify and obtain approval by DCA prior to employing or otherwise 

securing the services of any consultant to be compensated with funds provided for in 
this Agreement. 

 
1.4 The City shall carry out the approved City of Dawsonville Historic Resources Survey 

and Inventory project work between the date of written notification by DCA of the 
approval and September 30, 2025. 

 
1.5 The City shall submit one copy of a first draft of the project to DCA for review and 

comment no later than August 15, 2024. The City shall submit one copy of a second 
draft to DCA no later than November 1, 2024 for review and approval. 

 
1.6 The City shall submit the required number of copies of the final project, as specified 

in Exhibit B, to DCA no later than January 15, 2025.  
 

1.7 The City shall notify DCA in the event of any of the following conditions: 
 

a) Problems, delays or adverse conditions which will materially affect 
the progress of the project work.  

 
b) The need for adjustment to the project work or cost estimates.  

 
 

1.8 The City shall submit progress reports summarizing the status of project work. Such 
reports shall be submitted to DCA with each on a regular basis, until the completions 
of the project. 
 



1.9 The City shall submit one (1) copy of a completion report along with the final 
reimbursement request. Final payment shall not be made until the completion report 
has been approved. 

 
1.10 Any publications, exhibits, public announcements, news releases or presentation 

related to this project shall acknowledge federal assistance as follows: This 
(material or preservation project) has been financed with assistance from the 
Historic Preservation Fund, administered by the National Park Service, U. S. 
Department of Interior, through the Historic Preservation Division of the Georgia 
Department of Community Affairs.  Any opinions, findings, conclusions or 
recommendations expressed in this [project/product] are those of the author(s) and 
do not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Department of the Interior or 
the Georgia Department of Community Affairs, nor does the mention of trade 
names, commercial products or consultants constitute endorsement or 
recommendation by these agencies.  This program receives Federal financial 
assistance for identification and protection of historic properties. Under Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and 
the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, the U.S. Department of the 
Interior prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, 
gender or disability in its federally assisted programs.  If you believe you have 
been discriminated against in any program, activity, or facility as described above, 
or if you desire further information, please write to:  Office for Equal Opportunity, 
National Park Service, 1849 C Street, N. W., Washington, D.C. 20240. 
 

1.11 The City will obtain approval by DCA and the National Park Service prior to 
publishing any product that has been produced with the assistance of this grant or 
matching funds. 

 
 
Section 2. Disbursements and Financial Records  
 
2.1 DCA shall issue disbursements to the City in accordance with this Agreement as 

follows:    
a. DCA will disburse the Grant to the City in an amount not more than sixty 

percent (60%) of the allowable cost to the City of the project work, as 
approved by DCA.  

b. DCA will disburse an amount not to exceed $6,000.00 to the City not later 
than November 30, 2025 (60 days after end date). 
 

2.2 Payments on a sixty (60%) percent reimbursement basis may be made at reasonable 
intervals during project work and upon submission to the City of a request for 
reimbursement supported by required financial documentation and a statement of 
work accomplished to date. Reimbursements can only be provided against cash 
expenses. 



2.3 Both Parties and any subcontracted parties shall maintain their registration with the 
System for Award Management (“SAM”), accessed at http://www.sam.gov. Failure 
to maintain registration can impact obligations and payments under this MOA and/or 
any other financial assistance or procurements documents the City may have with the 
Federal government. 

2.4 Accurate records of all costs relating to the project work – whether cash expenditures 
or donated services, materials or equipment - shall be maintained by the City in a 
separate ledger, in accordance with acceptable management and accounting practices, 
and submitted to DCA. All record retention shall be in accordance with the regulations 
outlined in 2 CFR 200.333. 

2.5 The City shall maintain financial documentation concerning the project work until a 
successful audit has been completed by DCA and DCA has notified the City in writing 
that such records are no longer needed.  Copies of such records or any portion thereof 
shall be supplied to DCA upon request.  For a period of three (3) years or until the 
City has been notified in writing by DCA that such records are no longer needed, 
whichever is earlier. The City shall maintain records of any other sources of state or 
federal funding for the project work in order that duplication of work or matching 
capability may be prevented.  The City shall complete an audit within ninety (90) days 
after the end of the fiscal year in which the project ends and any other required 
financial or programmatic documentation as specified by the Single Audit Act of 1984 
(31 U.S.C. '7501 et seq.) and all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations or 
guidelines. 

Section 3. Points of Contact 

All correspondence, invoices and any other communication regarding this MOA 
should be directed to the following representatives for DCA and the City:     

Georgia Department of Community 
Affairs 

60 Executive Park South, NE 
Atlanta, Georgia 30329 

Attn: Torrey Long 
Torrey.long@dca.ga.gov 

City of Dawsonville  
415 Highway 53 East, Suite 100 

Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
Attn: Amanda Edmondson 

Director of Downtown 
Development 

downtowndevelopment@dawso
nville-ga.gov 

Section 4.  Termination. 

This MOA may be terminated prior to disbursement by either party for any reason 
upon seven (7) days prior written notice to the other party.    

Section 5.  Federal Requirements. 



5.1         The City agrees to comply with all applicable regulations, laws, policies, 

guidelines and requirements of the grant program, including those outlined in the 

Historic Preservation Fund Grant Manual, OMB regulations in 2CFR200, National 

Register Programs Guidelines, the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for 

Archaeology and Historic Preservation, and any special conditions or regulations 

relating to the application, acceptance and use of Federal funds for a federally 

assisted project.  Final products that do not conform to the applicable Secretary of 

the Interior's "Standards" will not be reimbursed.   

5.2 The City agrees that no part of the funds provided for under the terms of this 

Agreement shall be used directly or indirectly to pay for any personal service, 

advertisement, telegram, telephone, letter, printed or written matter, or other device, 

intended or designated to influence in any manner a member of Congress, to favor or 

oppose, by vote or otherwise, any legislation or appropriation by Congress, whether 

before or after the introduction of any bill or resolution proposing such legislation or 

appropriation.  Thus, costs associated with activities to influence legislation pending 

before the Congress, commonly referred to as "lobbying," are unallowable as 

charges to HPF-assisted grants, either on a direct or indirect basis (18 U.S.C. § 

1913). If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 

paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 

of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, 

loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard 

Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 

instructions. 

5.3        The City will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C.    

2000d et seq., and in accordance with Title V of that Act, no person in the United 

States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 

discrimination under any program or activity for which the applicant receives 



Federal financial assistance. The City will immediately take any measures necessary 

to effectuate this provision. 

5.4        The City will comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000 

et seq.) prohibiting employment discrimination where (1) the primary purpose of a 

grant is to provide employment, or (2) discriminatory employment practices will 

result in unequal treatment of persons who are or should be benefiting from the 

grant-aided activity. 

5.5         The City will comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 

794 et. seq.) which requires that no qualified handicapped individual is solely, by 

reason of handicap, excluded from the participation in, denied the benefits of, or 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 

assistance. 

5.6        The City agrees that whoever knowingly and willfully misapplies, steals, or obtains 

by fraud or endeavors to embezzle any funds, assets, or properties which are the 

subject of a subgrant, contract or other form of assistance pursuant to this award, or 

whoever receives, conceals or retains such funds, assets, or property with intent to 

convert such funds, assets, or property to his/her use or gain, knowing that such 

funds, assets or property have been embezzled, willfully misapplied, stolen, or 

obtained by fraud, shall be subject to prosecution. 

5.7         The City and all sub-recipients or contractors must report any credible evidence that 

a principal, employee, agent, contractor, sub-recipient, or other person has submitted 

a false claim under the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil 

violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar 

misconduct involving grant funds.  Report potential fraud, waste, abuse, or 

misconduct to: 

Office of Inspector General 

U.S. Department of the Interior 



ATTN: Intake Management Unit 

381Elden Street, Suite 3000 

Herndon, VA 20170 

Telephone: (800) 424-5081 

Fax: (703) 487-5402 (ATTN: HOTLINE OPERATIONS) 

Section 6. Miscellaneous. 

6.1 Communications and correspondence under this MOA may be conducted via email, 
facsimile, post, meetings and/or teleconferences.  

6.2 This MOA sets forth the entire agreement and understanding between the parties as to 
the subject matter hereof and merges all prior discussions between them; and neither 
party shall be bound by any conditions, definitions, warranties, understandings or 
representations with respect to such subject matter other than as expressly provided 
herein.   

6.3 This MOA may not be modified or altered except in writing by an instrument duly 
executed by authorized officers of DCA and City. No other terms and conditions, oral 
or written, be they consistent, inconsistent, or additional to those contained herein, 
shall be binding upon the parties, unless and until such terms and conditions shall have 
been specifically accepted in writing by the parties. 

6.4  DCA is not a partner, joint venture, or in any other way a party to the Project.   

6.5 This MOA shall be governed by, construed and applied in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Georgia. 

6.6  With the express written consent of the other party, either party may assign in whole 
or in part, any of its rights and obligations here under to any other party, including its 
affiliates or successors, as may be provided by state and federal law program 
requirement, provided however, that notwithstanding any such agreement assignor 
retains primary responsibility for ensuring the obligations in Section 1 and Section 2 
of this MOA are accomplished by an appropriate governmental entity. 

6.7 If any provision of this MOA, or any portion thereof, should be ruled void, invalid, 
unenforceable or contrary to public policy by any court of competent jurisdiction, any 
remaining provisions of this MOA shall survive and be applied, and together with the 
invalid or unenforceable portion shall be construed or reformed to preserve as much 
of the original words, terms, purpose and intent as shall be permitted by law. 

6.8 The section and paragraph headings contained in the MOA are for reference purposes 
only and shall not affect the meaning of interpretation of this MOA. 



[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned duly authorized officers or agents for DCA 
and the City have hereunto affixed their signatures below. 

AGREED TO BY: 

BY GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (“DCA”) 

By: 

Jennifer Dixon Date 
Division Director, Georgia Department of Community Affairs 

(SEAL) 

BY: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

By: 

Date 

(SEAL) 



EXHIBIT A 
GRANT ADMINISTRATION DELIVERABLES 

The City is responsible for project and grant management.  Grant management consists of action 
items and deliverables related to procurement, reporting, consultant management, and 
reimbursement.  The following deliverables must be provided to DCA for review.  DCA will 
complete the review of the deliverables within 15 days.  All deliverables will be submitted to NR 
Tigers. 

• Draft Request for Proposal (RFP)
• Bid Tabulation Forms
• Draft Consultant Contract
• Executed Consultant Contract
• Activity Reports
• Request for Reimbursement

Draft Request for Proposal (RFP) 
TARGET DUE DATE: August 15, 2023 

• The City must follow local procurement requirements.
• The draft documents for the RFP must be submitted to DCA prior to the RFP

advertisement.
• The RFP should contain the following information on the projects:

o Background information on the project
o Scope of work
o Timeline in which it needs to be completed
o Expectations for review
o Description of community role in project

Draft Consultant Contract 
TARGET DUE DATE: September 1, 2023 

• The City must provide a draft of the consultant contract prior to execution.
o Placeholders can be used for unknown items such as project cost, consultant,

initiation date, etc.
• The City should prepare this draft while the RFP is active.

Bid Tabulation Forms 
TARGET DUE DATE: October 15, 2023 

• The City shall submit a bid tabulation which summarizes the RFP results.
• The form must include a summary of each bid, including the firm, firm’s address, firm’s

phone number, and cost proposal.
• The City must also indicate which bid is preferred along with a justification.
• Form must be submitted prior to execution of a contract with the preferred vendor.

Consultant Contract 
TARGET DUE DATE: November 1, 2023 



• The City shall submit a copy of the fully executed contract between the City and the
consultant.

Activity Reports 
DUE DATES: October 1, 2023; January 15, 2024; April 15, 2024; July 15, 2024; November 1, 
2024; February 1, 2025 

• The City shall submit a report on regular intervals.
• The report should include at a minimum, the work accomplished during the performance

period, estimated expenses to date, anticipated completion date, and issues for DCA to
address.

Request for Reimbursement: 
DUE DATE: October 30, 2025 

• The City may request a reimbursement at intervals coinciding with Activity Report due
dates.

• The City must provide the following documentation with the request for reimbursement:
o Invoices or receipts for services
o Proof of payment of services via a cancelled check.

 Proof of check creation is not sufficient for documentation.
o Timesheets for donated labor for each individual
o Rate of pay verification form for each individual donating labor



EXHIBIT B 
SCOPE OF WORK 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
HISTORIC RESOURCES SURVEY 

The City will conduct phase one a comprehensive historic resources survey of an estimated 100 resources 
(or as many as funds will allow), which will include buildings, structures, sites, and objects, constructed 
before 1983, and located within the City of Dawsonville. The survey area will include the Downtown area 
of Dawsonville, which is defined on the map attached to this contract as Exhibit C.   

All project work shall conform to the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Archaeology and Historic 
Preservation, which include the Standards for Evaluation, Identification, and Registration.  The project 
work will be prepared in accordance to (a) National Register Bulletin:  Guidelines for Local Surveys:  A 
Basis for Preservation Planning; (b) the Historic Preservation Division’s guidance materials for 
identifying and documenting Georgia’s historic resources, including the “Georgia Historic Resources 
Manual;” and (c) the DCAs Georgia’s Natural, Archaeological, and Historic Resources Geographic 
Information System (GNAHRGIS) web-based GIS database.     

The City will ensure that the consultant(s) meets professional requirements according to the Secretary of 
the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards (36 CFR Part 61) and possesses the following:  

1. A thorough knowledge of and familiarity with American architectural history;

2. Demonstrated experience in researching and describing historic resources, conducting
architectural surveys, and writing historic contexts;

3. A thorough knowledge of and familiarity with identifying and evaluating Georgia’s historic
resources including architectural styles and types, the GNAHRGIS database, and survey
procedures;

4. Demonstrated writing skills; and

5. Experience with digital photography.

The City will ensure that consultant(s) is familiar with data categories and procedures for the 
GNAHRGIS system and is aware of the information contained in Exhibit D.   

The City will ensure that all survey data and digital photographs are entered in the GNAHRGIS online 
database within the contract period.  All data groups in GNAHRGIS will be completed for each resource 
surveyed and a minimum of two (2) digital photographs, dating to within six (6) months of the survey 
date, per surveyed resource will be uploaded. Resource information is entered and stored via the 
GNAHRGIS website.  Printed (hard copy) resource “forms” are not required and are not reimbursable as 
part of this grant.   

The City will provide a survey area map delineating surveyed parcels. The map will indicate the survey 
area boundary, any relevant local or National Register of Historic Places-listed historic district boundaries 
and any proposed amendments to existing boundaries, ALL addresses, legal parcels, ALL GNAHRGIS 



ID numbers and ALL street names, and be at a scale of 1” = 200’. The map will include a key explaining 
boundaries.  

The City will provide three (3) final printed copies and two (2) electronic copies (CD/DVD/USB) of the 
survey report, and the survey map, to DCA within the contract period.   

The survey report is to include at a minimum:   

 Executive summary, which includes the total number of surveyed resources;

 Project description, including how the survey was funded, who sponsored the survey,
the name of the surveyor, and a general description of the survey area, including a clear statement
and justification of the boundaries of the Phase Two area surveyed, and the total number of
surveyed resources for Phase One;

 In describing the survey’s funding, include the following disclaimer:
 “This (material or preservation project) has been financed with assistance from the

Historic Preservation Fund, administered by the National Park Service, U. S. Department
of Interior, through the Historic Preservation Division of the Georgia Department of
Community Affairs. Any opinions, findings, conclusions or recommendations expressed
in this [project/product] are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views
or policies of the Department of the Interior or the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs, nor does the mention of trade names, commercial products or consultants
constitute endorsement or recommendation by these agencies. This program receives
Federal financial assistance for identification and protection of historic properties. Under
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, the U.S. Department of the
Interior prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, gender or
disability in its federally-assisted programs. If you believe you have been discriminated
against in any program, activity, or facility as described above, or if you desire further
information, please write to: Office for Equal Opportunity, National Park Service, 1849 C
Street, N. W., Washington, D.C. 20240.”

 Summary of previous preservation projects, including previous survey efforts, local
designations, National Register listings, and other historic preservation planning efforts;

 Developmental history, a brief but comprehensive written account of how the area
developed over time, socially and physically, and how it reflects distinctive aspects of Georgia’s
history;

 Survey methodology, including the fieldwork techniques and research methods
employed while conducting the survey references to previous surveys and any re-survey
completed as part of this project;

 Recommendations for future preservation activities, including: potential National
Register nominations for individual resources and/or historic districts with basic boundary
justification(s) for any proposed historic districts, as applicable; potential updates and/or
amendments to existing National Register historic district listings, as applicable; designation
recommendations for potential local historic districts, as applicable; and potential economic
development, heritage tourism, and other preservation planning activities;

 The following disclaimer must be included in this section:
“This survey does not change the existing National Register nomination or listing in any



way, including but not limited to: contributing/noncontributing status of properties, 
period of significance, boundaries, and/or additional documentation. Any amendments, 
additional information, increase or decrease of boundaries must be made through the 
formal National Register process outlined in 36 CFR 60, as amended.” 

 Survey results and architectural analysis, including the total number of surveyed resources
divided into appropriate categories; a table listing all of the building types and all of the architectural
styles as identified in GNAHRGIS, in addition to narrative defining the building types and
architectural styles; local architectural character; some general observations (such as integrity and
condition of resources, character-defining features, and apparent developmental trends), and local
landmarks and eccentricities;

 Appendix 1:  table listing all GNAHRGIS ID numbers associated with the survey paired with the
address of the resource that each GNHARGIS ID number represents.

 Appendix 2: A survey map that delineates the survey area; existing local historic district and
National Register-listed district boundaries and potential updates and/or amendments to these existing
district boundaries; and the boundaries of identified potential new historic districts (this map will be
in addition to the separate 1”=200’ map discussed above).

The above criteria are the minimum standards. For more detailed guidance on the survey report, 
please refer to the Georgia Historic Resources Survey Manual. 

All project development by the City shall be reviewed by DCA.  The review process includes reviewing 
and approving consultant selection, the consultant contract, GNAHRGIS data, first draft of the survey 
report and map, subsequent drafts of the survey report and map, final draft of the survey report and map, 
and other materials determined necessary during project development.  

Prior to review by DCA, the City shall review drafts of the survey report and map. The City shall ensure 
that the consultant provides GNAHRGIS survey data point documentation at the 25% and 75% data entry 
due dates.   

The City will complete project work by the following due dates. Timelines will not be adjusted unless 
extreme circumstances require. Timeline adjustments will be requested and approved via written 
correspondence.   

January 15, 2024 Approximately 25% of surveyed resource data entered into GNAHRGIS. 
Documentation spreadsheet submitted with Second Activity Report. 

May 15, 2024 Approximately 75% of surveyed resource data entered into GNAHRGIS. 
Documentation spreadsheet submitted with Third Activity Report.  

August 15, 2024 First Draft of Survey Report submitted in hard copy (1 unbound copy) or 
electronic format (MS Word) and map to the DCA for review and comment 

November 1, 2024 Second Draft of Survey Report submitted in hard copy format to the DCA 
for review and comment, as necessary 
Final version of one (1) set of survey map(s) submitted for approval by the 
DCA 

January 15, 2025 Final Survey Report submitted to the DCA in hard copy format three (3) 
copies and two (2) electronic copies (CD/DVD/USB) 



Final Survey Map Submitted to the DCA (1 copy) 
All GNAHRGIS data and digital photographs for each resource completed 

BUDGET 

FEDERAL SHARE $   6,000.00 
MINIMUM REQUIRED MATCHING SHARE $   4,000.00 

MINIMUM TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 10,000.00 



EXHIBIT C 
MAP 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
HISTORIC RESOURCES SURVEY 

Map delineating boundaries of FFY 2023 HPF grant-funded historic resources survey for the 
City of Dawsonville identified as area within the shaded areas. 

If funds allow for survey of additional resources outside of these boundaries, the consultant and 
the City should work with the DCA to define additional survey area boundaries in a systematic 
manner.  





EXHIBIT D 

NOTE ON RESURVEY OF RESOURCES 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

HISTORIC RESOURCES SURVEY 

Include the following language in the Request for Proposal, as budgeting for resurvey of resources can 
impact cost and time allowances: 

In 2016, the City of Dawsonville, was surveyed, and resources documented through this survey were later 
entered into GNAHRGIS with varying degrees of accuracy. Therefore, this survey will likely have a high 
number of resurveyed resources. The below image of GNAHRGIS shows resources located within and 
around the proposed survey area. This means the surveyor will need to identify previously-surveyed 
points in GNAHRGIS and link new survey data (or resurveyed resources) to the previous entry to avoid 
duplicate entries for the same resource. 

The surveyor will need to find the previous point or GNAHRGIS ID number via an address search, by 
locating the resource geographically using the GNAHRGIS map, or by exporting survey data from the 
GNAHRGIS Public website and filtering the points to identify those within the current survey area 
boundary. The address search method for locating previously surveyed resources will likely be the most 
helpful within municipalities or when a resource’s address is clearly defined. In more rural areas of the 
county, where an exact address may not be immediately apparent, the method of geographically locating 
the resources using the GNAHRGIS map will likely be more effective. 

These processes are discussed in detail in the GNAHRGIS help guides located within the web site. 

Account for this process in determining time and budget allowances for this survey. 



Figure 1 Screenshot of GNAHRGIS database of survey area, 4/19/23 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF FIELD ENGINEERING, LLC AS A SECONDARY 

ENGINEERING FIRM  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

     TO APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF FIELD ENGINEERING, LLC FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AS A SECONDARY ENGINEERING FIRM 

      
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
FIRM WILL BE UTILIZED FOR PRIMARILY NON WATER/SEWER PROJECTS BUT MAY ALSO BE 
USED FROM TIME TO TIME IN ADDITION TO TURNIPSEED ENGINEERING FIRM FOR 
WATER/SEWER PROJECTS AS NEEDED 
    
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
      
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager___________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7c     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    APPROVE FARMER’S MARKET FEE WAIVER FOR DC HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

CAR SEAT SAFETY CHECK EVENT   
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

     TO APPROVE RENTAL FEE WAIVER OF $225 FOR THE DAWSON COUNTY HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT TO HOLD THEIR CAR SEAT SAFETY CHECK EVENT 

      
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
EVENT WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 22, 2023 FROM 7:30 AM TO 1:00 PM 
    
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
      
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager___________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7d    
 

 

 

























                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:  APPROVE NO RATE CHANGE FOR 2024 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE 

RATE AND SERVICE CHARGE  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO APPROVE ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2024 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE RATE OF  $15.90 PER 
CAN, PER MONTH FROM RED OAK SANITATION – NO INCREASE FROM 2023, SAME SERVICE APPLIES 
 
TO APPROVE THE CITY’S 2024 SERVICE CHARGE TO COVER THE ADMIN AND CAPITAL COSTS 
INCURRED FOR PROVIDING THE WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE TO RESIDENTS AT $19.90 WHICH IS 
COST PLUS $4.00 – NO INCREASE TO RESIDENTS  

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• NON-APPROVAL OF RATE WOULD RESULT IN BIDDING SERVICE OUT 
• CONTRACT WILL NEED TO BE UPDATED AND SIGNED ONCE RATES ARE APPROVED            

 

     OPTIONS: 
 

   
 

 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:    

   
 

 

      
 
REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7e     
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023   
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
 

• JULY EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH 
• SERVICE AWARDS FOR AUGUST 

    
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ZSP C2300063   _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  Monday August 21, 2023       
 

 
 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING  

ZSP C2300063:  Atlanta Motorsports Park, LLC has petitioned to amend the site plan and the 
current stipulations; located at 20 Duck Thurmond Road (TMP 070 049 001).  Public Hearing 
Dates:  Planning Commission on Monday, August 14, 2023, and City Council Monday, August 21, 
2023.  City Council for a decision on September 18, 2023.  

 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is located within Mark French Post 4 Council district. 
2. The subject property is zoned CIR, with adjoining properties zoned RA, R-1, and Highway 

Business. 
3. (ZA-11-08-1763) Rezoned from R-1 to CIR with stipulations on April 13, 2009 
4. (ZA2017-C7-0089) Requested to modify stipulations March 2017 – withdrawn by applicant 
5. (CU-C9-00287) Approved for a Conditional Use Permit to construct garage condos on 

September 9, 2019 
6. (ZA-C9-00287) Approved the request to update the site plan minus a teen driving school on 

September 9, 2019. 
7. Planning Commission recommended approval of the amended site plan and stipulations 

(attached in the Staff Report) 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS:  
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: Jameson Kinley        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  9 
 



1 
 

 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
PLANNING STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 

Applicant ...................................................................Jeremy Porter, Atlanta Motorsports Park, 
LLC 

 
Amendment # ...........................................................ZSPC2300063 
 
Request ......................................................................Update to Site Plan and Stipulations 
 
Proposed Use ............................................................CIR – Restricted Industrial Commercial 

District 
 
Current Zoning ........................................................CIR – Restricted Industrial Commercial 

District 
 
Size .............................................................................+/- 152.14 Acres 
 
Location ....................................................................20 Duck Thurmond Road  
 
Tax Parcel .................................................................070-049-001 
 
Planning Commission Public Hearing Date ..........Monday, June 12, 2023 and August 14th, 

2023 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation ...............Requested to TABLE their recommendation 

until their July 10th meeting. 
 

 
Council Date Public Hearing Date .........................Monday June 19, 2023 – TABLED until 

Planning Commission Recommendation and 
August 21st, 2023 

 
Applicant Proposal 
 
The applicant is seeking to amend the conditions along with an updated site plan for the 
following purposes: 

- Adding lighting to kart track with the intent of requesting expended house for karts only 
- Ability to conduct noiseless events on the track during off-peak hours for military and 

police purposes 



  

2 
 

- Hosting four (4) race weekends with unlimited sound limits 
- Additional Condos 
- Adding Race Cottages 
- Request to use condos as short-term rentals 
- Additional sign on 53 
- Adding Elevated Parking Decks 
- Reworking on the condition to only require fire and ambulance to be onsite for every 

event over 45 mph 
- Lifting the restriction to allow spectators without grandstands 
- Allowing a PA system with restrictions 
- Increasing the sound level at property line from 63 Dba LEQ(16) to 65 Dba LEQ(16) 
- Clarifying enforcement language of sound limits 
- Increasing the sound level track level from 98 Dba LEQ(16) to 101 Dba LEQ(16) 
- Addition of track extension 
- Additional clarification of conditional language 

 
Surrounding Properties  
 

Adjacent Land Uses Existing zoning Existing Use 

North R-1 Residential 

South RA/HB Residential 
Agriculture/Commercial 

East R-1/RA Residential Agriculture 

West R-1  Residential 

 
Criteria for Consideration of Map Amendments (Rezoning): 
APPENDIX A - ARTICLE IX. -Sec. 909 
 
The applicant, staff, Planning Commission and governing body should review an application for 
zoning map amendment with regard to the following criteria: 
 

1. The existing uses and zoning of nearby property and whether the proposed zoning 
will adversely affect the existing use or usability of nearby property. 

a. The proposed additional development should not adversely affect the use or 
usability of nearby properties. 

2. The extent to which property values are diminished by the particular zoning 
restrictions. 

a. There should be no diminished property values from the proposed additional 
development. 

3. The extent to which the destruction of property values promotes the health, safety, 
morals or general welfare of the public. 

a. There should be no destruction of property values from the proposed additional 
development. 



  

3 
 

4. The relative gain to the public, as compared to the hardship imposed upon the 
individual property owner. 

a. The relative gain to the public is an expanding commercial venture that brings 
additional sales tax from a prospering business.  

5. The physical suitability of the subject property for development as presently zoned 
and under the proposed zoning district. 

a. The property is currently developed for this purpose and is suitable for the 
additional development.  

6. The length of time the property has been vacant, considered in the context of land 
development in the area in the vicinity of the property, and whether there are 
existing or changed conditions affecting the use and development of the property 
which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the rezoning 
request. 

a. The property has been in operation under its current use for 10+ years. It is 
currently zoned the highest commercial intensity of any zoning classification the 
city can provide. The additional development would fall appropriately under the 
existing classification.  

7. The zoning history of the subject property. 
a. (ZA-11-08-1763) Rezoned from R-1 to CIR with stipulations on April 13, 2009 
b. (ZA2017-C7-0089) Requested to modify stipulations March 2017 – withdrawn by 

applicant 
c. (CU-C9-00287) Approved for a Conditional Use Permit to construct garage 

condos on September 9, 2019 
d. (ZA-C9-00287) Approved the request to update the site plan minus a teen driving 

school on September 9, 2019 
8. The extent to which the proposed zoning will result in a use, which will or could 

cause excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, 
utilities, schools, parks, or other public facilities. 

a. The proposed additional development should not cause excessive or burdensome 
use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, schools, parks, or other 
public facilities. 

9. Whether the zoning proposal is in conformity with the policy and intent of the 
comprehensive plan, land use plan, or other adopted plans. 

a. The Comprehensive Plan refers to this property as being Light/Restricted 
Industrial in which it is already zoned accordingly.  

 
  



  

4 
 

 
Analysis 
 
Commercial Additions to the Site Plan 

- 15,000 Square Foot Maintenance Shed 
- 9,600 Square Foot Go Kart Garage 

o 24 Garages 
- 2,000 Square Foot Go Kart Garage 

o 24 Garages 
o 5 Garage 

- Go Kart Garage 
- Go Kart Lighting 
- Track Extension 
- Interconnecting Golf Cart paths and bridges 

Total: 26,600 Sq Ft of Commercial Space 

Residential 

- 5 Condo Buildings 
o 11,520 Square Foot Building 
o 20,736 Square Foot Building 
o 24,370 Square Foot Building 
o 24,320 Square Foot Building 
o 19,840 Square Foot Building 
o Total: 100,789 Square Feet of Condo Space 

- 125 Smaller Condos/Race Cottages 
o 34 Carousel Units 

 Approx. 850 Square Foot Each 
o 14 Turn 6 Units 

 Approx. 850 Square Foot Each34*850 
o 12,000 Square Foot Building 

 15 Units 
o 14,400 Square Foot Building 

 18 Units 
o 26,880 Square Foot Building 

 21 Units 
o 29,400 Square Foot Building 

 26 Units 
o Total: 123,520 Square Feet of Smaller Condos/Race Cottage Space  

Total: 224,309 Square Feet of Residential Space 

  



  

5 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends approval of the site plan with the following updated stipulation: 
 

1. Private driving instruction and exhibition facility shall mean a facility containing a paved 
roadway two or more miles in length (the “driving course”) the use of which is limited to: 

a. Providing instruction and training in safe driving skills, adverse weather driving 
techniques, or high performance/competition driving; 

b. The exhibition, maintenance, and operation of vintage or specialty motor vehicles; 
c. Similar activities which are recreational or educational in nature; 
d. A private driving instruction, racing and exhibition facility; 
e. Accessory clubhouse, rental garages, retail and permitted commercial or industrial 

uses serving the primary driving course operations.  
f. Garage Condos (Approved September 9, 2019)      
g. 46 Race Cottages  
h. Ability to allow up to 25% of owners to rent Airbnb, VRBO, etc condos and race 

cottages.       
i. Other than the set forth above, no other commercial uses shall be allowed as 

principal use unless approved by the City Manager on the recommendation of the 
Planning Director.  

1. Approved commercial uses should be confined to the limits of the 
approved site plan and should serve, in majority, the facility that is 
constructed.  

2. The Applicant/Owner, their successors and assigns by application for and acceptance of 
this rezoning shall have conclusively deemed to have agreed to indemnify the City and its 
agents and representatives from all liability including personal injuries and property 
damage coming out of the extensive, use, ownership, or operation of the Motorsports 
Park.  

3. When the driving course is not in use, it shall be secured in such a manner to prevent its 
unauthorized use. 

4. Any Public Address (PA) system shall be below 98 DBA at 50 feet from the speaker. 
5. Driving course shall be enclosed by a fence of a height and construction sufficient to 

preclude unauthorized persons from gaining access to the driving course from the main 
entrance, hot and cold pit areas. 

6. When the car/motorcycle driving course is in use at speeds  more than 45 mph, the 
Operator shall, at his/her expense, onsite, a fully equipped ambulance with EMT. The 
EMT’s shall be licensed under the laws of the State of Georgia. 

7. Rental garages, Club House, rental buildings and any other permitted 
commercial/industrial building shall be placed strategically to reduce sound levels. The 
location of the buildings shall be approved by the City Planning Director. 

8. There shall be fifty (50) foot or greater undisturbed buffers along all streams. 



  

6 
 

9. Where the property runs along Duck Thurmond Road, buildings and existing Acoustiblok 
or similar quality sound fence shall be placed to reduce the sound levels and keep as 
much vegetative cover as possible on approved site plan      

10. There shall be a buffer of between one hundred (100) feet and two hundred (200) feet to 
reduce sound levels as designed by Owner’s sound engineer to meet the requirements of 
Condition 17. The buffer shall be around the perimeter of the property and shall be 
undisturbed except to permit an entrance road to the subject property, the construction of 
sound mitigation measures and/or the installation of any utilities. This buffer shall be 
planted in any area that is not visually impervious to a level approved by the City 
Planning Director in order to prevent any soil erosion. 

11. Exterior lighting fixtures shall be of the box type and situated so that light only goes 
downward and shall not be more than twenty-five feet high and shall be designed so to 
minimize glare and light spillage to not more than one (1) foot candle along the interior 
buffer line of the subject property. With exception of the kart lighting outlined in 
condition 14b.  

12. There will be no grandstand(s) constructed on the property. 
13. All signs at property lines will meet current regulations. Atlanta Motorsports Park will be 

allowed two signs on the property. The existing Atlanta Motorsports Park sign is 
approved and in place at the entrance on Duck Thurmond Road. The second sign will be 
allowed on highway 53 on the berm of the retention pond. The second sign will be two 
sided and follow the current sign and size regulations allowed under the CIR designation.  

14. Hours of operation are limited to 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. from November 1 to March 31. 
From April 1 to October 31, the hours are limited to 7:00 a.m. (or one (1) hour after 
sunrise, whichever is earlier) to 8:00 p.m. (or one (1) hour after sunset, whichever is 
earlier). No on track activity before 8 a.m. 

a. Go-Kart Track extended to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday, 11:00 p.m. 
Friday and Saturday, and 8:00 p.m. on Sunday.  

b. The lighting for the go-kart track is LED only, and be a similar system/brand 
design, light spill, pole height, etc as the MUSCO Lighting System Kart Spill 
Lighting Plan Date Oct 7th, 2022, and Kart Lighting Design and Details dated 
August 16, 2022 

c. Military and Law Enforcement training and events are allowed after hours 
without noise. 

15. No type of vehicle other than maintenance vehicles, military or law enforcement may run 
on the track before or after the hours listed above. 

16. Facility to be restricted to site plan as submitted as to the use of the property, the type of 
structures allowed and the general placement of the structure as the same may be revised 
by the Owner’s sound engineer to meet the sound requirements of Condition 18. Any 
major adjustments, change or additions must be approved by the Planning Commission. 
Any minor adjustments must be approved by the Planning Director. The decision of what 
is major, or minor is to be made at the discretion of the Planning Director. 

17. Sound monitoring meters shall be installed in four locations around the perimeter of the 
property at the property line on the outside edge of the buffer at locations as shown on the 



  

7 
 

approved site plan. These meters monitor in a unified fashion, if multiple meters read 
above the sound limits at the same time and same day, it does not result in multiple fines, 
but one fine per incident. If one meter reads above the sound limit and the others do not, 
it does result in a fine.  In addition, the Owner shall install one sound meter 50 feet from 
the outside track pavement edge to monitor track sound levels such that they remain 
below 101 DBA LEQ      per vehicle at all times. Only Low Noise Go-Karts may be 
operated on the track and their noise level may not exceed 92 DBA LEQ. The Owner, its 
successors and assigns shall operate the sound monitoring meters at all times that the 
track is operating. As a condition of continued operation pursuant to their business 
license, sound levels at the four locations outside the existing sound fence as depicted on 
the approved site plan shall not exceed 65 DBA LEQ LEQ (16).  Method of 
measurement: Measurements shall be made with a calibrated sound level meter in good 
condition, meeting the requirements of a Type 1 or Type 2 meter, as specified in ANSI 
Standards, section 1.4 – 1971. For the purpose of this section, a sound level, a sound level 
meter shall contain at least an “A” weighting network, and both fast and slow response 
capability. Failure to comply with this condition shall result in a citation for watch 
offense and upon conviction a fine as set by the City Judge of up to $1,000 per violation.  
Upon three or more convictions for failure to comply with this condition during any 
calendar year, the Mayor and Council may revoke the business license and the ability of 
Owner,  and its successors and assigns to operate the facility as a motorsports park 
complex. 

18. All infrastructures shall be designed and installed as required by the Development 
regulations in force at the time the Owner seeks permits for development.      

19. Allow up to two (2) annual events on the car/motorcycle course from Thursday through 
Sunday that will involve a maximum of 300 racer entrants with open sound limits during 
events. These events will operate only during the hours of Condition 17. Each event 
requires prior approval of City Council. Once approved by City Council that event cannot 
be canceled by any preceding motion.  

20. Approval of Master Site Plan page C201 created by Civilogistix dated October 31, 2022 
latest revision May 30, 2022  

 
Note: Removed all mentions of “Non-spectator” due to the request of spectator events. 
Note: Removed all satisfied conditions.  
Note: Highlighted are changed from current conditions. 
  



  

8 
 

Planning Commission recommended approval of the amended site plan and the 
following stipulations: (highlighted differences from staff recommendation) 
 
1. Private driving instruction and exhibition facility shall mean a facility containing a 

paved roadway two or more miles in length (the “driving course”) the use of which is 
limited to: 

a) Providing instruction and training in safe driving skills, adverse weather 
driving techniques, or high performance/competition driving 

b) The exhibition, maintenance, and operation of vintage or specialty motor 
vehicles 

c) Similar activities which are recreational or educational in nature 
d) A private driving instruction, racing and exhibition facility 
e) Accessory clubhouse, rental garages, retail and permitted commercial or 

industrial uses serving the primary driving course operations 
f) Garage Condos (Approved September 9, 2019) 
g) 46 Race Cottages  
h) Ability to allow up to 25% of owners to rent Airbnb, VRBO, etc. condos and 

race cottages 
i) Other than the set forth above, no other commercial uses shall be allowed 

as principal use unless approved by the City Manager on the 
recommendation of the Planning Director.  

a. Approved commercial uses should be confined to the limits of the 
approved site plan and should serve, in majority, the facility that is 
constructed.  

 
2. The Applicant/Owner, their successors and assigns by application for and acceptance of 

this rezoning shall have conclusively deemed to have agreed to indemnify the City and 
its agents and representatives from all liability including personal injuries and property 
damage coming out of the extensive, use, ownership, or operation of the Motorsports 
Park.  
 

3. When the driving course is not in use, it shall be secured in such a manner to 
prevent its unauthorized use. 
 

4. Any Public Address (PA) system shall be below 90 DBA at 50 feet from the speaker. 
 

5. The driving course shall be enclosed by a fence of a height and construction 
sufficient to preclude unauthorized persons from gaining access to the driving 
course from the main entrance, hot and cold pit areas. 
 



  

9 
 

6. When the car/motorcycle driving course is in use at speeds more than 45 mph, the 
operator shall, at his/her expense, onsite, a fully equipped ambulance with EMT. 
The EMT’s shall be licensed under the laws of the State of Georgia. 
 

7. Rental garages, Club House, rental buildings, and any other permitted 
commercial/industrial building shall be placed strategically to reduce sound levels. 
The location of the buildings shall be approved by the City Planning Director. 
 

8. There shall be fifty (50) foot or greater undisturbed buffers along all streams. 
 

9. Where the property runs along Duck Thurmond Road, buildings and existing 
Acoustiblok or similar quality sound fence shall be placed to reduce the sound levels 
and keep as much vegetative cover as possible on the approved site plan. 
 

10. There shall be a buffer of between one hundred (100) feet and two hundred (200) 
feet to reduce sound levels as designed by Owner’s sound engineer to meet the 
requirements of Condition 17. The buffer shall be around the perimeter of the 
property and shall be undisturbed except to permit an entrance road to the subject 
property, the construction of sound mitigation measures and/or the installation of 
any utilities. This buffer shall be planted in any area that is not visually impervious 
to a level approved by the City Planning Director in order to prevent any soil 
erosion. 
 

11. Exterior lighting fixtures shall be of the box type and situated so that light only goes 
downward and shall not be more than twenty-five feet high and shall be designed 
so to minimize glare and light spillage to not more than one (1) foot candle along 
the interior buffer line of the subject property. With the exception of the kart 
lighting outlined in condition 14b. 
 

12. There will be no grandstand(s) constructed on the property. 
 

13. All signs at property lines will meet current regulations. Atlanta Motorsports Park 
will be allowed two signs on the property. The existing Atlanta Motorsports Park 
sign is approved and placed at the entrance on Duck Thurmond Road. The second 
sign will be allowed on highway 53 on the berm of the retention pond. The second 
sign will be two sided and follow the current sign and size regulations allowed 
under the CIR designation. 
 

14. Hours of operation are limited to 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. from November 1 to March 
31. From April 1 to October 31, the hours are limited to 7:00 a.m. (or one (1) hour 
after sunrise, whichever is earlier) to 8:00 p.m. (or one (1) hour after sunset, 
whichever is earlier). No on track activity before 8 a.m.  



  

10 
 

a) Go-Kart Track extended to 9:00 p.m. Monday through Thursday, 11:00 p.m. 
Friday and Saturday, and 8:00 p.m. on Sunday, seasonal April 1st through 
October 31st. 

b) The lighting for the go-kart track is LED only, and be a similar system/brand 
design, light spill, pole height, etc. as the MUSCO Lighting System Kart Spill 
Lighting Plan Date Oct 7th, 2022, and Kart Lighting Design and Details dated 
August 16, 2022.   

c) Military and Law Enforcement training and events are allowed after hours 
without noise with a 45-day notice to the City Manager.  
 

15. No type of vehicle other than maintenance vehicles, military or law enforcement 
may run on the track before or after the hours listed above. 
 

16. Facility to be restricted to site plan as submitted as to the use of the property, the 
type of structures allowed and the general placement of the structure as the same 
may be revised by the Owner’s sound engineer to meet the sound requirements of 
Condition 18. Any major adjustments, change or additions must be approved by the 
Planning Commission. Any minor adjustments must be approved by the Planning 
Director. The decision of what is major, or minor is to be made at the discretion of 
the Planning Director. 
 

17. Sound monitoring meters shall be installed in four locations around the perimeter 
of the property at the property line on the outside edge of the buffer at locations as 
shown on the approved site plan. These meters monitor in a unified fashion, if 
multiple meters read above the sound limits at the same time and same day, it does 
not result in multiple fines, but one fine per incident. If one meter reads above the 
sound limit and the others do not, it does result in a fine.  In addition, the Owner 
shall install one sound meter 50 feet from the outside track pavement edge to 
monitor track sound levels such that they remain below 98 DBA LEQ per vehicle at 
all times. Only Low Noise Go-Karts may be operated on the track and their noise 
level may not exceed 92 DBA LEQ. The Owner, its successors and assigns shall 
operate the sound monitoring meters at all times that the track is operating. As a 
condition of continued operation pursuant to their business license, sound levels at 
the four locations outside the existing sound fence as depicted on the approved site 
plan shall not exceed 63 DBA LEQ (16).  Method of measurement: Measurements 
shall be made with a calibrated sound level meter in good condition, meeting the 
requirements of a Type 1 or Type 2 meter, as specified in ANSI Standards, section 
1.4 – 1971. For the purpose of this section, a sound level, a sound level meter shall 
contain at least an “A” weighting network, and both fast and slow response 
capability. Failure to comply with this condition shall result in a citation for watch 
offense and upon conviction a fine as set by the City Judge of up to $1,000 per 
violation.  Upon three or more convictions for failure to comply with this condition 
during any calendar year, the Mayor and Council may revoke the business license 



  

11 
 

and the ability of Owner, and its successors and assigns to operate the facility as a 
motorsports park complex. 
 

18. All infrastructures shall be designed and installed as required by the Development 
regulations in force at the time the Owner seeks permits for development.  
 

19. Allow up to two (2) annual events on the car/motorcycle course from Thursday 
through Sunday that will involve a maximum of 300 racer entrants with open sound 
limits during events. These events will operate only during the hours of Condition 
14 and a minimum 90-day written notice to the adjacent property 
owners/neighbor.  Each event requires prior approval of the City Council. Once 
approved by the City Council, that event cannot be canceled by any preceding 
motion. 
 

20. Approval of Master Site Plan page C201 created by Civilogistix dated October 31, 
2022, latest revision May 30, 2023.   
 

21. GDOT after they have recommended their improvements, that these be reviewed 
by the City Council with the potential petitioner, paying for the improvements at 
Highway 53 West and Duck Thurmond Road, with any further expansion of Atlanta 
Motorsports Park.  

 
  



  

12 
 

 

 
Pictures of Property: 
 

 
 
 
  



  

13 
 

 
Current Zoning Map: 
 

 
  



  

14 
 

Site Plan: 

 



  

15 
 

Aerial: 
 

 

 























   P.O. Box 1720  •  Gainesville, Georgia  30503  •  Phone (770)538-2626  •  FAX (770)538-2625 

DRI #4005 - Atlanta Motorsports Park

STATEMENT OF FINDING

Based on the information provided, comments received, a review of the local comprehensive 

plan and prevailing DRI review criteria, the GMRC staff analysis finds that this project does not 

present any potential adverse interjurisdictional impacts. The finding assumes the project will 

proceed as presented to the GMRC and only if the project complies with all applicable local, 

State and federal rules and regulations and if the following advisory comments and 

recommendations are considered and addressed. 

Summary of Staff Review

The proposal is for a mixed-use development with 291 residential units and 54,600

square feet commercial use surrounding an existing racetrack and go-kart track facility.

The development is located at the intersection of Duck Thurmond Road and GA 53,

approximately 4 miles west of downtown Dawsonville.  The area surrounding the

development remains rural, with the closest subdivision or office park still miles away.

There are approximately 100 conventional residential lots to the northwest, and a private

airport 2 miles to the north.

Atlanta Motorsports Park maintains their own package utility system, designed to handle

this new development.  This includes infrastructure on site and equipment with regards to

aiding emergency services.  The proposed project also places no burden on local or

county concerns regarding fire, emergency ambulance services, wastewater, sound,

educational due to planned systems at AMP and development covenants for the

secondary homes. The plan mirrors the City’s 2023 Comprehensive Plan Update and both

the airport and industrial zone character areas on the western edge of the city regarding

intentions towards smart planned growth and development that is sustainable and does

not place an excessive burden on city services nor detract from the conservation centered

surrounding area.  No regional concerns regarding utilities.

The overall proposal assumes only about 35% impervious surface coverage.  The

application lists that “Natural vegetation, buffers, detention and retention ponds will be

placed strategically within the development to mitigate the stormwater management.”

Sweetwater Creek is a perennial stream that runs along portions of the north and east of

the property boundary.  This drains into Shoal Creek, which eventually drains into the

Etowah River. Given the presence of environmentally sensitive conditions, including

being within a water supply watershed, the application offers the following mitigation

strategy:



   P.O. Box 1720  •  Gainesville, Georgia  30503  •  Phone (770)538-2626  •  FAX (770)538-2625 

“Multiple water quality BMPs have been designed which will minimize the runoff of 

total suspended solids from the site. This will reduce or negate the impact of 

stormwater runoff from the site on the Coosa-North Georgia Watershed. Additional 

infiltration of stormwater runoff through best management practices will be provided, 

allowing for groundwater recharge to occur on site. There is one wetland identified 

by Ecological Solutions on site which occupies approximately 4800 square feet. A 

portion of this wetland will be impacted by the construction of the track extension. An 

area identified as Flood Zone “A” is located on the northern portion of the property, 

as labeled on FEMA map #13085C0100B. A “no-rise certification” has been 

conducted by Joan Woodward, PE, which certifies that the base flood elevations of 

the 100-year flood have not impacted off the property in question.” 

Given that the track and much of the site is already developed, the impact of the new 

development should be marginal.  The City will want to ensure the stormwater 

management plans are valid, particularly along the creek side and accounting for the 

steep slopes on site.  Lastly, the City should also ensure the development maintains 

practices for the management of chemicals on site that could seep into the ground or flow 

into the creek.  Provided storage and application of the fuels, oils, and other chemicals is 

up to code, then the other stormwater measures should be sufficient.  Assuming 

compliance with all applicable federal, State and local regulations, there are no 

regional concerns regarding environmental protection.  

The project site utilizes GA 53 as the primary artery for all incoming and outgoing traffic,

despite the only access coming off Duck Thurmond Road.  Because of the mostly

residential nature of the new phase of development, the application lists a projected

impact of only 100 new vehicle trips per day (approximate).  A cursory review of other

trip generation models by GMRC staff suggests the number might be higher.  Of more

importance will be the impact of traffic for special events and whether or not those

occasions might warrant a need for improvements at the intersection of GA 53 and Duck

Thurmond Road.

Without any formal traffic analysis provided, Georgia DOT staff has suggested that “the

development will cause impacts to the intersection of SR 53 @ Duck Thurmond Rd.

Upgrades will be needed to improve operations and safety at the intersection.” The chief

concern may come from traffic during event days but also a possible increase in freight

traffic.  Vehicles with trailers carrying equipment or other vehicles would slightly

increase congestion and hazard conditions at the intersection compared to simple car

traffic, especially if the base traffic flow along GA 53 is anticipated to increase in the

coming years.  There are no regional concerns regarding traffic or transportation

infrastructure, but the City is encouraged to review this development in conjunction

with GDOT personnel and with thoughts about intersection improvements at the noted

locations.





From: Peevy, Jonathan

To: Adam Hazell

Cc: Dykes, Jason; Hash, Christopher M

Subject: RE: Notice of DRI review - 4005 Atlanta Motorsports Park (Dawsonville)

Date: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 7:43:25 AM

Attachments: image002.png
image004.png
DRI4005_Review Packet.pdf
4005 notification.docx

This message was sent from outside your organization. Please proceed with
caution.

Adam,

Looking at this DRI, the development will cause impacts to the intersection of SR 53 @ Duck Thurmond

Rd. Upgrades will be needed to improve operations and safety at the intersection.

Thanks,

Jonathan Peevy, P.E.

Assistant District Traffic Engineer

District 1 Traffic Operations1475 Jesse Jewell PkwySuite 100Gainesville, GA, 30501770.533.8276 office
From: Dykes, Jason  

Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 2:21 PM

To: Hash, Christopher M ; Peevy, Jonathan 

Subject: Fwd: Notice of DRI review - 4005 Atlanta Motorsports Park (Dawsonville)

FYI

Jason Dykes, PE

GDOT - District 1, Gainesville

Assistant District Engineer

District Traffic Engineer

From: Mullins, Kelvin 

Sent: Friday, July 14, 2023 11:52:47 AM

To: Dykes, Jason ; Decker, Sue Anne 

Subject: FW: Notice of DRI review - 4005 Atlanta Motorsports Park (Dawsonville)



























                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT: 56TH ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL: REQUEST FOR ROAD CLOSURES AND FEE WAIVER 
 

     DATE(s):                  _   WORK SESSION                          _08/21/2023______  CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
  
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: $10,000.00_ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO CONSIDER REQUEST FOR USE OF MAIN STREET PARK AND FARMER’S MARKET W/FEES WAIVED FOR 
RENTAL SPACES, CITY HALL AND ADJACENT AREA, AND ROAD CLOSURES FOR THE 56TH ANNUAL MOUNTAIN 
MOONSHINE FESTIVAL AND PARADE OCTOBER 27-29, 2023.  THE COST SHOWN ABOVE IS FOR CONTRACTED 
DEPUTIES. THIS IS THE FOURTH CONSECUTIVE YEAR THAT THE EVENT WILL BE HELD IN THIS SPACE. 
 
K4K MUST GET APPROVAL FROM THE GA RACING HALL OF FAME/DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM FOR 
THEIR REQUESTED USE OF CONCRETE AROUND WINNER’S CIRCLE. 
 
K4K IS AWARE THAT THE SPACE OUTSIDE THE DISTILLERY RENTAL SPACE WILL NOT BE INCLUDED IN THE 
PERMITTED AREA. 
 
ROAD CLOSURES INCLUDE MAIN STREET THROUGH THE PARK AND ALLEN STREET FROM HIGHWAY 53 TO 
MEMORY LANE FROM 5 AM FRIDAY, 10/27 THROUGH 8 PM SUNDAY 10/29.  
 
ROAD CLOSURES ONLY FOR PARADE SATURDAY MORNING HIGHWAY 53 FROM BEARDEN’S FUNERAL HOME 
AROUND THE OLD COURTHOUSE AND BACK ENDING AT MEMORY LANE. 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
EVENT AND ROAD CLOSURES ARE SIMILAR TO PRECEDING YEARS. 
 
KARE FOR KIDS REPRESENTATIVE WILL BE PRESENT FOR QUESTIONS. 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
STAFF RECOMMEND APPROVAL AS PRESENTED PENDING PERMISSION FROM DAWSON CO EMS AND 
DAWSON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE FOR ENTIRE EVENT, AND GDOT FOR PARADE ROUTE.  
 
 

 
      
     REQUESTED BY: ______Bob Bolz, City Manager_________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #_____10______ 
 

 

 



















                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043   _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  Monday August 21, 2023       
 

 
 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have petitioned to annex into the city limits of 
Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, 
located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) 
and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of R3 (Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: 
Planning Commission on September 13, 2021, and City Council on October 4, 2021. Tabled indefinitely on 
April 18, 2022; On August 7, 2023, item was removed from table and placed on the August 21, 2023, 
agenda. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
• Planning Commission denied the request on 9/13/21. The concept plan did not meet city ordinances. 
• Amended application to annex and zone tract 2 with 32.937 acre only. 
• The amended concept plan reflects the proposed 65 units. 
• Amended letter of intent request to approve 75 units yielding a density of 2.28 units per acre. 
• Applicant is requesting a variance to the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53- 
• Sidewalks to eliminate the required sidewalk along Perimeter Road lots 58 thru 65. 
• Planning department has provided a revised timeline. 
• Planning department has provided a department summary with recommended conditions if 
• approved. 

________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
If annexation and zoning is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve annexation 
and zoning application C2100043 tract # 2 known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001 with 32.937 acres. 
Density shall not exceed 75 units or 2.28 units per acre. Approval shall be conditioned per Planning and 
Zoning Department summary letter dated 1/11/22. 
 
If the variance is approved motion recommended to be as follows: Motion to approve the variance request to 
the Land Development Regulations Chapter 109 Sec 109-53-Sidewalks to eliminate the required sidewalk 
along Perimeter Rd lots 58-65. 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: Jameson Kinley        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 11  
 



 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 
 
   

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
Date: 1/11/2022 

 

To: Mayor Mike Eason and City Council 

 

Reference: ANX/ZA C2100043 Planning and Zoning Department Summary 

 

The planning department has provided the following pertinent information to help you decide on this 
request: 

1.  If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include an approved water and sewer service area agreement between Etowah Water and Sewer Authority 
and the City of Dawsonville. The service area agreement dedication must include both water and sewer 
services. The agreement shall be dedicated to the City of Dawsonville prior to the issuance of a grading 
permit (LDP).  

2. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of an engineered AC or Solar powered, high intensity LED signs, in pavement 
crosswalk LED lights and activated device across Perimeter Road at the intersection of Allen Street to 
provide pedestrian access to Robinson Elementary school. 

3. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of a sidewalk from the 32.937-acre tract to the existing sidewalk system in front of 
Dawson County High school. 

4. If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include a ten foot no access buffer along Perimeter Road.  

5.  If the zoning amendment is approved the Planning Department is requesting a condition of zoning to 
include the installation of a right in and right-out vehicle movement at the north entrance due to the 
intersection alignment not meeting GDOT intersection offset requirements. 

 
 
David Picklesimer 
Planning Director 
 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 

Date: 12/7/21 

 

From: David Picklesimer, Planning Director 

 

Reference: ANX/ZA C2100043 Timeline 

 

• Original application submitted to the city: 8/14/20. 
• Original application submitted to Dawson County BOC: 8/21/20. 
• Planning Department advertised original application: 8/26/20. 
• Original application response received from Dawson County BOC: 9/11/20. 
• Planning Commission public hearing on original application: 9/14/20. Applicant requested postponement. 
• Planning Commission public hearing on original application: 11/9/20. PC voted to deny. 
• Council held public hearing on original application:11/16/20. Council postponed until 1/19/21. 
• Applicant amended application: 12/9/20. 
• Amended application submitted to Dawson County BOC: 12/9/20 
• Dawson County BOC response to amended application received: 1/7/21.  
• Council held public hearing 1/19/21. Council tabled until arbitration complete. 
• Dawson County BOC withdrew objection 5/11/21.  
• Planning Department advertised Council public hearing meeting on 5/26/21 for amended application.  
• Council public hearing date 6/21/21 for amended application.  
• Council final decision date 7/19/21 for amended application.  
• Applicant requested to postpone 7/19/21 until 10/18/21 to allow adjoining property owner time to request 

annexation. 
• Planning Department advertised amended application 8/18/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• Planning Commission public hearing date 9/13/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• Planning Commission denied request 9/13/21. 
• City Council public hearing date 10/4/21 due to wrong TMP advertised. 
• City Council decision date 10/18/21.  
• City Council postponed until 12/6/21. 
• City Council postponed until 1/20/22. 
• City Council postponed until 03/21/22. 

 

  

 





Perimeter Road 
32.937 Acres 

 
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lots 372, 373, 427 and 428 of the 
North Half of the 13th Land District, Dawson County, Georgia and being more 
particularly described as follows; 
 
To find the True Point of Beginning, commence at the intersection of Land Lots 371 and 
372 and the Easterly right of way of Perimeter Road (80’ right of way), said point marked 
by a ½ inch Rod found; Thence traveling on said Perimeter Road right of way the following 
three (3) courses and distances: 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 1766.51 feet and an arc length of 162.28 feet 
being subtended by a chord bearing of South 12 Degrees 33 Minutes 28 Seconds East  and a 
chord distance of 162.22feet to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius 
of 1049.03 feet and an arc length of 473.65 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of 
South 03 Degrees 00 Minutes 32 Seconds West  and a chord distance of 469.63 feet to a 
point; THENCE continuing on said right of way South 15 Degrees 56 Minutes 37 Seconds 
West for a distance of 651.37 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set, 
said point being THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
THENCE from said point as thus established, leaving said easterly right of way of 
Perimeter Road, North 89 Degrees 17 Minutes 56 Seconds East for a distance of 172.17 feet 
to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 636.02 feet and an arc 
length of 103.03 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 86 Degrees 03 Minutes 
37 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 102.92 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ 
inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 81 Degrees 25 Minutes 09 Seconds East for a distance 
of 106.01 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a 
curve to the left having a radius of 663.34 feet and an arc length of 195.29 feet being 
subtended by a chord bearing of South 89 Degrees 51 Minutes 12 Seconds East  and a 
chord distance of 194.58 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; 
THENCE North 81 Degrees 42 Minutes 46 Seconds East for a distance of 407.62 feet to a 
point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a curve to the right 
having a radius of 59.40 feet and an arc length of 40.63 feet being subtended by a chord 
bearing of South 78 Degrees 41 Minutes 37 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 39.84 feet 
to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 59 Degrees 06 
Minutes 00 Seconds East for a distance of 40.85 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ 
inch rebar pin set; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 159.40 feet and 
an arc length of 47.19 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of South 50 Degrees 37 
Minutes 08 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 47.02 feet to a point, said point marked 
by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE South 42 Degrees 08 Minutes 15 Seconds East for a 
distance of 19.39 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE 
along a curve to the left having a radius of 240.60 feet and an arc length of 188.97 feet being 
subtended by a chord bearing of South 64 Degrees 38 Minutes 15 Seconds East and a chord 
distance of 184.15 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE 
South 87 Degrees 08 Minutes 15 Seconds East for a distance of 60.12 feet to a point, said 
point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin set; THENCE traveling South 02 Degrees 23 Minutes 



44 Seconds East for a distance of 817.75 feet to a point, said point marked by a ½ inch 
rebar pin found;  THENCE South 85 Degrees 54 Minutes 23 Seconds West for a distance of 
1589.65 feet to a point on the easterly right of way of Perimeter Road (80’ right of way), 
said point marked by a ½ inch rebar pin found; 
 
THENCE traveling on said Perimeter Road right of way the following four (4) courses and 
distances: 
along a curve to the right having a radius of 4750.52 feet and an arc length of 180.80 feet 
being subtended by a chord bearing of North 05 Degrees 58 Minutes 08 Seconds East  and 
a chord distance of 180.79 feet to a point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a 
radius of 3438.13 feet and an arc length of 387.33 feet being subtended by a chord bearing 
of North 10 Degrees 17 Minutes 12 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 387.13 feet to a 
point; THENCE along a curve to the right having a radius of 3438.13 feet and an arc 
length of 145.79 feet being subtended by a chord bearing of North 14 Degrees 43 Minutes 
43 Seconds East  and a chord distance of 145.78 feet to a point; THENCE North 15 Degrees 
56 Minutes 37 Seconds East for a distance of 360.06 feet to a point, said point being THE 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said property contains 32.937 Acres 







































































                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   ANX C2200170   _______________________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  Monday August 21, 2023       
 

 
 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
B&K Turner Family, LLP has petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville the 35.31-acre tract 
known as TMP 083 025, Located at Land Lot 584, 4th District, Section 1, with a County Zoning of RA 
(Residential Agricultural/Residential Exurban) to City Zoning AP (Annexed Property District).  Public Hearing 
Dates:  Planning Commission on June 13, 2022, and City Council on June 20, 2022.  City Council for a 
decision on July 18, 2022. Tabled indefinitely on July 18, 2022; On August 7, 2023 item was removed from 
the tabled and placed on the August 21, 2023 agenda. 
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
1. Property is located within Caleb Phillips Post 1 Council district. 
2. The subject property adjoins City zoned R3 district to the south, City zoned R3 district to the 

east, County zoned RA district to the west and City zoned INST district to the north. 
3. Applicant is requesting to annex 35.31 acres. 
4. Existing County RA zoning. 
5. Proposed City AP zoning. 
6. Rezoning petition cannot be filed for 12 months from the effective date. 
7. The AP zoning designation is a temporary designation up to a period of 16 months after the 

effective date and shall automatically convert from AP zoning district to R1 zoning district. 
8. Mayor and City Council can extend the AP zoning district up to 18 months. 
9. Water and Sewer service is proposed to be provided by Etowah Water and Sewer. 
10. Dawson County Board of Commissioners heard the request on 6/2/22. The board had no 

objection to the request and did not take a vote. Approval by 30-day default will be on 6/16/22. 
11. Planning Commission approved the request without conditions on 6/13/22. 

________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny or Postpone 
 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: Jameson Kinley        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 12  
 

































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 07-2023: ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AMENDMENT 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 07-2023:  AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
FIRST READING: AUGUST 7, 2023; SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: 
AUGUST 21, 2023 
 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
SLIGHT REVISION MADE FROM FIRST VERSION 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
    
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 07-2023 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article IX, Section II, Paragraph II of the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia and Chapter 35 of Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia, the City Council of 
Dawsonville is empowered to adopt reasonable ordinances for local government upon matters not 
governed by general law and which are not inconsistent with the Constitution of the State of 
Georgia or the Charter of the City of Dawsonville; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article I of Chapter 3 of Title 3 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, 
specific authority is given to the local governments of this State to regulate the sale of alcoholic 
beverages in ways not inconsistent with State Law; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the interests of public health, safety, 
morals, convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the City of Dawsonville to update 
and clarify certain provisions of the City’s Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, the governing body of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia, does hereby amend 
its Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance as follows:   
 
SECTION I: Brewery with taproom and package sales license. 
 
Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article I In General, Division 2 Licenses and Permits Offered; 
Regulations for Certain Licenses and Permit, Section 3-14 Brewery with taproom and package 
sales license of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Dawsonville is hereby amended by deleting 
Section 3-14 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following: 
 

§ Sec. 3-14 Brewery with taproom and package sales license. 
 
(a) Any person, business, or entity desiring to operate a brewery with taproom and 
package sales within the city shall apply for a brewery with taproom and package 
sales license prior to engaging in such activities. 
 
(b) Unless otherwise provided in this chapter, a brewery licensee engaging in any 
manufacturing, wholesale, distribution, retail on-premises consumption sales, 
and/or retail package sales authorized by a brewery with taproom and package sales 
license shall comply all regulations of the applicable general manufacturing, 
wholesale dealer, retail consumption dealer, and/or retail package dealer licenses 
provided for in this article. 
 

Subject Matter: Alcoholic Beverages  
Date of First Reading: August 7, 2023 
Date of Second Reading: August 21, 2023 
Date of Adoption:  
 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

(c) A brewery licensee is authorized to manufacture beer or malt beverages on its 
licensed premises and sell its products, produced or manufactured by the licensee 
on the licensed premises, to wholesale dealers and/or distributors or at retail to 
individuals on the brewery's licensed premises for: 
 

(1) On-premises consumption in a taproom or similar facility located on the 
licensed premises; and 

 
(2) Off-premises consumption in closed packages, in compliance with 
O.C.G.A. 3-5-1 et seq., as now written or hereafter amended. 

 
(d) Food sales or service is permitted in a brewery, but is not required. There is no 
requirement for minimum revenue for food sales or for an on-premises fixed or full-
service kitchen. 
 
(e) A brewery licensee is authorized to sell beer or malt beverages, as produced 
and/or manufactured by the licensee on the licensed premises, at retail for on-
premises consumption Monday through Saturday between the hours of 11:00 a.m. 
and 11:30 p.m., and Sunday between the hours of 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 p.m., along 
with federal holidays from 12:30 p.m. until 11:30 p.m. In addition, upon application 
and approval by the city manager, a licensee may be authorized to sell beer or malt 
beverages, as produced and/or manufactured by the licensee on the licensed 
premises, at retail for on-premises consumption on other dates for special events, 
pursuant to a temporary on-premises consumption permit. 
 
(f) Smoking of any type, including cigarettes, cigars, vaping, or similar, is 
prohibited within the premises of a brewery, including any exterior patio or similar. 
 
(g) No gaming devices, including coin-operated amusement machines, as defined 
and regulated by the state law are permitted in breweries. 

 
SECTION II: Winery/farm winery with tasting room and package sales license. 
 
Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article I In General, Division 2 Licenses and Permits Offered; 
Regulations for Certain Licenses and Permit, Section 3-15 Winery/farm winery with tasting room 
and package sales license of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Dawsonville is hereby amended 
by deleting Section 3-15 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following: 
 

§ Sec. 3-15 Winery/farm winery with tasting room and package sales license. 
 
(a) Any person, business, or entity desiring to operate a winery/farm winery with 
tasting room and package sales within the city shall apply for a winery/farm winery 
with tasting room and package sales license prior to engaging in such activities. 
 
(b) Unless otherwise provided in this chapter, a winery/farm winery licensee 
engaging in any manufacturing, wholesale, distribution, retail on-premises 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

consumption sales, and/or retail package sales authorized by a winery/farm winery 
with tasting room and package sales license shall comply all regulations of the 
applicable general manufacturing, wholesale dealer, retail consumption dealer, 
and/or retail package dealer licenses provided for in this article. 
 
(c) A winery/farm winery licensee is authorized to manufacture wine and/or mead 
on its licensed premises and sell its products, produced or manufactured by the 
licensee on the licensed premises, to wholesale dealers and/or distributors or at 
retail in closed packages for off-premises consumption directly to consumers, in 
compliance with state law. 
 
(d) A winery/farm winery licensee is authorized to offer, for free, samples of its 
products, as produced and/or manufactured by the licensee on the licensed 
premises, to customers as a promotion for package sales. Samples shall be limited 
to one-ounce pours and shall be limited to no more than eight pours per customer, 
per day. Samples shall only be offered during normal business and/or operating 
hours of the licensee during which the sale of alcoholic beverages is permitted. 
 
(e) A winery/farm winery licensee is authorized to sell wine and/or mead, as 
produced and/or manufactured by the licensee on the licensed premises, at retail for 
on-premises consumption on Monday through Saturday between the hours of 11:00 
a.m. and 11:30 p.m., and Sunday between the hours of 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 p.m., 
along with federal holidays from 12:30 p.m. until 11:30 p.m. In addition, upon 
application and approval by the city manager, a winery/farm winery licensee may 
be authorized to sell wine and/or mead, as produced and/or manufactured by the 
licensee on the licensed premises, at retail for on-premises consumption on other 
dates for special events, pursuant to a temporary on-premises consumption permit. 
 
(f) Smoking of any type, including cigarettes, cigars, vaping, or similar, is 
prohibited within the premises of a distillery, including any exterior patio or similar. 
 
(g) No gaming devices, including coin-operated amusement machines, as defined 
and regulated by the state law are permitted in distilleries. 
 
(h) Food sales or service is permitted in a brewery, but is not required. There is no 
requirement for minimum revenue for food sales or for an on-premises fixed or full-
service kitchen. 

 
SECTION III: Distillery with cocktail room and package sales license. 
 
Chapter 3 Alcoholic Beverages, Article I In General, Division 2 Licenses and Permits Offered; 
Regulations for Certain Licenses and Permit, Section 3-16 Distillery with cocktail room and 
package sales license of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Dawsonville is hereby amended by 
deleting Section 3-16 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof the following: 
 

§ Sec. 3-16 Distillery with cocktail room and package sales license. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
(a) Any person, business, or entity desiring to operate a distillery with cocktail room 
and package sales within the city shall apply for a distillery with cocktail room and 
package sales license prior to engaging in such activities. 
 
(b) Unless otherwise provided in this chapter, a distillery licensee engaging in any 
manufacturing, wholesale, distribution, retail on-premises consumption sales, 
and/or retail package sales authorized by a distillery with cocktail room and 
package sales license shall comply all regulations of the applicable general 
manufacturing, wholesale dealer, retail consumption dealer, and/or retail package 
dealer licenses provided for in this article. 
 
(c) A distillery licensee is authorized to manufacture distilled spirits on its licensed 
premises and sell its products, produced or manufactured by the licensee on the 
licensed premises, to wholesale dealers and/or distributors or at retail in closed 
packages for off-premises consumption directly to consumers, in compliance with 
state law. 
 
(d) A distillery licensee is authorized to offer, for free, samples of its products, as 
produced and/or manufactured by the licensee on the licensed premises, to 
customers as a promotion for package sales. Samples shall be limited to one-half 
ounce pours and shall be limited to no more than five pours per customer, per day. 
Samples shall only be offered during normal business and/or operating hours of the 
licensee during which the sale of alcoholic beverages is permitted. 
 
(e) A distillery licensee is authorized to sell distilled spirits, as produced and/or 
manufactured by the licensee on the licensed premises, at retail for on-premises 
consumption on Monday through Saturday between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 
11:30 p.m., and Sunday between the hours of 12:30 p.m. and 11:30 p.m, along with 
federal holidays from 12:30 p.m. until 11:30 p.m. In addition, upon application and 
approval by the mayor and city council, a distillery with cocktail room licensee may 
be authorized to sell distilled, as produced and/or manufactured by the licensee on 
the licensed premises, at retail for on-premises consumption on other dates for 
special events, pursuant to a temporary on-premises consumption permit. 
 
(f) Smoking of any type, including cigarettes, cigars, vaping, or similar, is 
prohibited within the premises of a distillery, including any exterior patio or similar. 
 
(g) No gaming devices, including coin-operated amusement machines, as defined 
and regulated by the state law are permitted in distilleries. 
 
(h) Food sales or service is permitted in a brewery, but is not required. There is no 
requirement for minimum revenue for food sales or for an on-premises fixed or full-
service kitchen. 

 
 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

SECTION IV: Incorporation and Repealer  
 
Except as modified herein, the remainder of the Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance of the City of 
Dawsonville is affirmed and incorporated herein. All laws and parts of law in conflict with this 
enactment are hereby repealed.  
 
SECTION V: Effective Date  
 
This ordinance shall be effective the day following its passage by the City Council of Dawsonville.  
 
  
SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of _______________________, 2023.  
  
 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 
 

 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post #1 

 
             
              
       William Illg, Council Member Post #2 
 
             
              
       John Walden, Council Member Post #3 
 
 
       ____________________________________
       Mark French, Council Member Post #4 
              

ATTESTED TO BY: 

 

___________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES:   
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     14     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 PREPARED AUGUST 16, 2023, FOR AUGUST 21, 2023, AGENDA 

Family Connection 2nd Annual Family Fair: This year’s event was held August 11th and was a tremendous 
success. Family Connection is to be commended for an excellent event that connects the public with service 
agencies that might be of assistance. The event had 38 booths (eight more than last year), and easily over 600 
people in attendance. Free food for everyone and each booth had a carnival-type event for the kids while the parents 
learned about the services available by the provider. 
 
Certificate of Excellence for Financial Reporting: For the ninth straight year, the Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and Canada has awarded the City of Dawsonville the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022. The city’s Finance Department led by 
Finance Director Robin Gazaway was also given an Award of Financial Reporting Achievement. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: Thus far we have had seven very successful Comprehensive Plan Meetings including two 
public hearings July 13th. We had our final stakeholder meeting on August 10th. Joe is finalizing the draft plan for your 
review, and we hope to have it to the City Council in September. Thus far we have received 439 surveys. For current 
feedback results please use this link: https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-LC6NHP2X8/ 
 
Downtown Strategic Plan: TSW and city staff will host a Strategic Plan Kick-off Meeting on September 7th at 530 
PM. This will be a portion of the community visioning stage of strategic plaining. 
 
Grading Main Street Park Court Projects: The grading and gravel are complete and the court construction, 
weather permitting, will start the week of August 21st. 
 
Point Broadband (NGN Fiber) Installation of fiber is underway across the city.  
 
Sheriff’s Office Deputy Program: With Deputy Jacob Champion’s resignation, Jamie Grulla began his service with 
the city on August 9th. A 19-year veteran with both Dawson and Lumpkin counties, we are glad to have him join Cory 
Reemer equipping us with two officers.  
 
Annual Hydrant Testing for ISO Fire Rating: Staff have completed the required annual testing of fire hydrants that 
determines the city’s ISO rating for fire insurance. Members of our team would come in at 10 PM and work until 2 AM 
to test hydrants to have the least impact on our customers.  
 
Impact Fees Study: After guidance from the City Council, staff have put together the impact fee review committee 
and they will have a meeting on August 30th.  

Niche Columbarium: Delivered, installed and ready for business. 

DCA Grant for Historic Survey for Certified Local Government: Great news – we received the $6,000.00 grant to 
cover the cost of the required historical survey as the next step toward our CLG. We are working on an RFQ to select 
a company to carry out the survey. 
 
Farmer’s Market: The market continues to be very popular on Saturdays. They are opening on Wednesday from 3-5 
PM as well. 
 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/results/SM-LC6NHP2X8/


August’s Friday Night Food Truck Night: An excellent crowd, could be our largest ever, it featured live music, a 
water slide, Old Dad’s Wings, Brookton Catfish School, Weet Cheeks BBQ, PattyKakes, Best Ice Cream on Wheels, 
and IGY6 Coffee. Our next event is September 8th. 
 
Skate Park: Staff are planning and pricing relocating the skate park to a larger concrete pad inside the loop trail of 
Main Street Park behind the retirement home. The existing elements would be relocated there and more added. The 
existing skate pad would be converted to a rest room and a picnic shelter serving the pickleball court area. 
 
Well #112 Drilling: Bob Atkins, our city geologist and Utility Director Barr have identified five potential sites that we 
are researching for land ownership, etc. Unfortunately, EPD, effective July 1st, no longer allows waivers for well sites 
within 100’ of a stream. 
 
Governor’s Office of Planning & Budget Grant for Water System Infrastructure due to Population Increase: 
No news on the grant we applied for offered by the Governor’s Office of OPB that can be awarded to municipalities 
experiencing significant population increases. The grant request totaled $1,154,720.00 and would be used to cover 
the cost of drilling and setting up operation of the new well. The grant requires a 75-25 match; so, our portion would 
be $285,000.00. We have already budgeted in our Enterprise Fund for the total amount. If awarded, this could 
represent a savings of at least $896,220.00. The plans and design for the well are complete and the well drilling 
project should start in mid-May. 
 
EWSA Service Delivery Area Agreement Implementation: Staff met with Brook Anderson of EWSA to begin 
discussion transition efforts for billing, etc.  
 
Land Acquisition for Water Tower: Contract is signed, and we are awaiting title insurance. 
 
Lead & Copper Pipe Grant: Staff identify pertinent areas and making changes as needed. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Steff met with Turnipseed Engineering today and learned we are awaiting approval 
from the US Fish & Wildlife Service for their assessment of darters. Then, once approved, it should go quickly 
through EPD and USDA processes. USDA has been awarding 45% grants and GEFA loans are under 3%. The open 
market rates have been good. All will be evaluated. Construction times are extended because of supply line issues. 
They anticipate a two-year construction time. They anticipate costs up to $15 million and we have a $3 million grant 
from the Governor’s Office. 

Asset Management: We completed our asset management inventory utilizing Asset Panda with excellent 
results.   
 
Safety Grant: We received safety grant awards from LGRMS totaling $6,000.00 for use in FY24. 
 
T-Mobile Hometown Grant Proposal: We submitted a grant that if received, would provide funding for capturing 
digital humanities in the form of oral histories representing our community to make cultural preservation accessible to 
the public in the forms of wayfinding, public art, and technology. Downtown Director Edmondson submitted this grant 
that had a June 30th deadline. 
 
GDOT: 

• Improvements to Downtown Roundabout: GDOT has rebid the project to restripe the crosswalks around 



the old courthouse square. When a contractor is selected and an NTP issued, they will notify us. 
 

• Shoal Creek Bridge Construction & Paving Project: The city has requested utility relocation funds from 
GDOT to cover the $200,000.00 cost required to relocate the city waterline as needed for the bridge 
project. We await word. 

 
Georgia Racing Hall OF Fame: The City Council approved the 2023 lease.  

• Regarding the GA Fund One grant of $500,000.00, we are awaiting receipt of engineered drawings the 
DHM before we can proceed.  

• The front entrance doors will be paid for by the DHM with the city reimbursing. Per our attorney and auditor, 
they will present us with a paid invoice or cancelled check from which we will reimburse. The City Council 
approved a cost increase. GRHOF has taken no action for this project to date. 

• The City Council approved the painting of the Winner’s Circle, which was completed. 

Rental Space – City Hall Complex:  

• Grandaddy Mimms was selected as the distillery for the rental space. We are actively working on the design 
and plans for buildout as well as finalization of the lease. Staff and Mimms met with our engineer to finalize 
what is needed for construction so drawings can be completed and sent to the fire marshal.  

• Restaurant property, our engineer is developing buildout plans for the space including the kitchen 
equipment and fire marshal needs. We met with one restaurant that is very interested in coming to our 
location. 

• Patio: We have the second draft of drawings about the patio improvements that will bring a green, fresh look 
to this area.  

Dawson County Hazard Mitigation Task Force: Last updated in 2018 with city participation, both the City Manager 
and the Public Works Director are serving on this working group to revise the plan for 2023. 
 
Main Street Park Projects: 
 

• Playground: The zip line and the mini merry-go-round are back in service. This equipment was damaged 
by adults using it despite our efforts to prevent such use.  
 

• Disc Golf: We are evaluating additions to this course that would involve an agreement with the BOE for use 
of some of their property along Allan Street. 

 
• Basketball Court & Pickleball Courts:  Discussed above. 

 
• Shade: Staff continue researching shade for various locations in the park and the dog park. 

  
• Skate Park Expansion: Discussed above. 

  
• Small Bathroom between Shelter #3 and Skate Park/Court Area: We are working identify a modular rest 

room that can be set on site hooked up to utilities.  
 

• Water Fountains: We continue evaluating additional locations for water fountains within the park, each 
costing about $7,000. 

 



• Stage: Staff are researching the purchase of a hydraulic, mobile stage, like what we used at the tree lighting 
event. Since it is portable it can be set up and taken down in a few hours.  

 
• Dog Park: Eagle Scout candidate Palmer Hartley has finished his project complete with obstacles for the 

dogs, signage, and an entry way. The sidewalk is complete as is the landscape work.  
 

• Bridge & Trail to Library: Construction is complete. 
 

• Geocaching Site: Geocaching is a sport that is growing in popularity. There has existed a cache at the 
GRHOF for years. We have been approached by a volunteer geocaching enthusiast that wants to install and 
will maintain three sites, one in Main Street Park, one at the Dog Park, and one at Wallace Park. Staff have 
met with her, and we are awaiting her official proposal. 

 
• Splash Pad: Research into the possibility of adding this amenity is underway. The current cost estimate is 

over $350,000.00. 
 

• Power for Shelters & Christmas Tree Walk: The PW Director met with GA Power representatives and an 
engineer from CEC to evaluate power needs for a Christmas tree walk within Main Street Park. While here, 
they also discussed power for concerts and stage needs, as well as power to shelters #1 and #3 in hopes of 
addressing all of these issues at the same time. Engineered drawings are being repaired for GA Power. 

 
Downtown Update 
 

• Strategic plan: We held our initial meeting with TSW and this project is off and running. The Downtown 
Director has been conducting stakeholder interviews and cataloging comments from online and logbooks. 
 

Staff Update Several staff took some well-deserved time off this month. Three personnel were absent due to COVID 
for a short period. We held a monthly staff meeting. We lost one team member from the Utility Department. 

Leak Adjustments:  There were three leak adjustments this month totaling $461.13. Thanks to our upgraded 
electronic water meter reading system, we were able to catch these leaks before the customer, water loss or water 
conservation were impacted to a great degree. 

Calendar YTD     $2,496.94 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  08/21/2023      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH JUNE 30, 2023 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  15   
 

 

 



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

100%

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 2,163,050$       2,484,975$       114.88%
      Licenses and permits 91,900              106,100            115.45%
      Intergovernmental revenues 6,000                -                   0.00%
      Fees 256,975            324,650            126.34%
      Other 796,326            200,865            25.22%

               Total revenues 3,314,251         3,116,590         94.04%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 134,400            131,084            97.53%
      Mayor 22,860              16,338              71.47%
      Elections 15,000              -                   0.00%
      Administration 1,769,862         1,505,790         85.08%
      City Hall building 163,694            188,786            115.33%
      Animal control 1,536                100                   6.51%
      Roads 584,363            660,898            113.10%
      Parks 65,528              163,321            249.24%
      Planning and zoning 440,008            452,186            102.77%
      Economic development 117,000            12,000              10.26%

 
               Total expenditures 3,314,251         3,130,503         94.46%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (13,913)            

      Transfer in From Reserves 13,913              

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

 
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Water fees 800,000$        946,823$        118.35%
       Sewer fees 900,000          1,117,001       124.11%
       Garbage fees 230,200          318,019          138.15%
       Miscellaneous 357,683          306,212          85.61%

               
               Total revenues 2,287,883       2,688,055       117.49%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000          659,003          114.81%
        Garbage service 230,200          237,595          103.21%
        Group insurance 164,000          159,855          97.47%
        Insurance -                  32,947            #DIV/0!
        Interest 87,450            80,055            91.54%
        Payroll taxes 31,000            27,961            90.20%
        Professional 193,000          406,314          210.53%
        Miscellaneous 149,311          166,261          111.35%
        Repairs/supplies 229,000          316,163          138.06%
        Retirement 24,000            25,303            105.43%
        Salaries 355,672          377,464          106.13%
        Technical services 77,000            92,818            120.54%
        Utilities 173,250          160,954          92.90%

               Total expenditures 2,287,883       2,742,693       119.88%

INCOME (LOSS) (54,638)           

Did not include Gold Creek receviable:  $1,073,927



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VI

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Interest 100                   2,068                2068.00%
       Other 42,900              -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 43,000              2,068                4.81%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   128,442            0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                9,000                100.00%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 43,000              137,442            319.63%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (135,374)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 135,374            
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST VII

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

SPLOST VII
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,599,900         1,287,398         80.47%
       Interest 100                   32,665              32665.00%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 1,600,000         1,320,063         82.50%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition -                   9,525                #DIV/0!
       Roads and sidewalks -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Land Acq. / Downtown 789,000            789,000            0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects/Sewer Projects 677,000            -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water 34,000              -                   0.00%
       Farmers market -                   -                   #DIV/0!
       Parks and recreation 100,000            12,267              0.00%

               Total expenditures 1,600,000         810,792            50.67%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 509,271            

      Transfer in From Reserves (509,271)          
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   


	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 08.07.2023 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting
	7b. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items HIST RES SURVEY GRANT
	7b. 2. Dawsonville Grant Agreement Ver 2
	This MOA may be terminated prior to disbursement by either party for any reason upon seven (7) days prior written notice to the other party.
	BY GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (“DCA”)
	BY: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE

	7c. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items FIELD ENGINNERING LLC
	7d. 2. CPS WEEK CAR SEAT CHECK 09.22.2023_Redacted
	7e. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items GARBAGE 2024
	7e. 2. City of Dawsonville 2024 Proposal
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1. ZSP-C23000063 executive summary
	9. 2. ZSPC2300063 staff report UPDATED post PC
	Existing Use
	Existing zoning
	Adjacent Land Uses
	Analysis

	9. 3. 08.21.2023 ZSP C2300063
	10. 1. Executive Summary For 2023 Moonshine Festival
	10. 2. 20230816112924336_Redacted
	11. 1. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043 executive summary
	11. 2. 08.21.2023 Meeting ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043_Redacted
	12. 1. ANX-C22000170 executive summary
	12. 2. 08.21.2023 Meeting ANX-C2200170
	13. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items ALC BEV
	13. 2. 07-2023 Alcoholic Beverage Ordinance Amendment.FINAL
	14. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	14. 2. 08212023 CITY MANAGER REPORT for the CCM
	15. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	15. 2. Financial Statements-JUNE23
	GF Budget
	WS vs Budget
	SPLOST
	SPLOST VII




